
M e e t i n g  M i n u t e s  o f  M a r c h  2 ,  2 0 2 2     P a g e  1 | 7 

 

 Town of West Boylston 
140 Worcester Street, West Boylston, Massachusetts 01583 

 

Select Board/Sewer Commission 

Meeting Minutes 

  
Date / Time / Location of Meeting 

March 2, 2022; 6:00 p.m. 

140 Worcester Street  

West Boylston, MA 01583 

Board Meeting Room 1st Floor 

 

  

Members Present 

Christopher A. Rucho, Chairman 

Barur R. Rajeshkumar, Vice Chair 

Patrick J. Crowley, Clerk  

Michael J. Kittredge III, Selectman 

Kristina Pedone, Selectwoman 

 

Members NOT Present:  

Invited Guests:  

Nancy Lucier, Town Administrator 

Faye Zukowski, Municipal Assistant 

Michael Coveney, Water District 

Superintendent  

Lisa Clark Viklund, Senior Center 

 

 

Others Present: Stanley Szczurko, Michael Mard 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT: This fifteen-minute period is an opportunity for the public to address their 

concerns and questions regarding town operations and programs to the Board.  Except in urgent 

circumstances, any matter presented for consideration by the Board shall not be discussed in detail nor 

acted upon by the Board at this meeting.  A scheduled time on a future agenda may be set at the Board’s 

discretion.  Complaints or criticism directed at staff, volunteers, or other town officials shall not be 

permitted.  If we do not have Open Session items to discuss, other agenda items may be brought 

forward earlier.     

APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES: 

• February 2, 2022 Regular Session:  

Motion Mr. Rajeshkumar moved to approve, Mr. Kittredge second.  

All in favor 

Approved 

 

REVIEW AND VOTE TO APPROVE WARRANTS FOR THE PERIOD COVERING 

FEBRUARY 17, 2022 TO MARCH 2, 2022: Town Payable Warrants FY2022-34 and FY2022-

35; Town Payroll Warrant FY2022-17; Sewer FY2022 SE-21; MLP FY2022 #18.  

Motion Mr. Crowley moved to approve; Mr. Rajeshkumar second.  

All in favor  

Approved  



M e e t i n g  M i n u t e s  o f  M a r c h  2 ,  2 0 2 2     P a g e  2 | 7 

 

 

Michael Coveney, Water District Superintendent:  

• Update on Manganese Filtration Project:  

Mr. Stanley Szczurko, Chairman of the Water District thanked the Board for the invite in to 

give presentation.  Mr. Michael Coveney, Superintendent explained the project was started in 

July 2021 and will be a $8.5 million dollar project with $1.5 million dollar grant from the 

State.  He stated they are currently pouring concrete, pressure vessels have been delivered, 

and the masons will begin this month on the building.  Mr. Coveney shared some site photos 

with the Board.  He explained the basins will be below the building which is where the 

filtered manganese is stored until pumped out.  Mr. Crowley asked if they have run into any 

issues that may affect the budget, Mr. Coveney stated nothing major.  Mr. Kittredge asked 

what the tanks are made of, Mr. Coveney stated steel and have a life expectancy of 40-50 

years and the media inside will need to be replaced every 10-15 years.  Mr. Coveney stated 

they are still on target to start up at the beginning of the year.        

• Update Pleasant Valley Well #2:  

Mr. Szczurko stated this project has been a very long effort beginning in 2005 for a search for 

location and permission from MWRA and DCR and with assistance from local state 

representatives a location was chosen.  He explained in 2015 they began working on the 

Pleasant Valley well location.  Mr. Coveney explained test wells were completed off Temple 

Street approximately 100 feet from shore of reservoir.  He explained the well is 60’ deep well 

24x48.  He stated the existing well building required some pipe work.  He extends his 

appreciation for everyone that helped with project.  He stated old well also had issues with 

manganese.  He stated the new well was less than $1 million dollars as opposed to a water 

treatment plant which would be over $8 million dollars.  Mr. Rajeshkumar asked distance to 

old well, Mr. Coveney stated it is 250’ away and does not have any manganese due to 

chemistry much different than old well but similar to reservoir water.  Mr. Kittredge asked 

about daily water rate, Mr. Coveney stated 720,000 gallons per day if pumped 24/7 with 500 

gallons per minute.  He stated the water is pumped into two tanks located at Stockwell Street 

and Beaman Street and also pump to the Lawrence Street tank through pump station.  He 

stated this water is used by the entire town.    

 

Lisa Clark Viklund & Council on Aging:  

• Discuss request for funding Chief position for Senior Center:  

Ms. Lucier stated this was discussed during the budget a position of a Chef was requested and 

Lisa explained this was discussed when the center was built.  She requested to have this 

discussed with the Board to see how to proceed with the budget for town meeting.  Lisa Clark 

Viklund Director presented the idea of having a Chef at the Senior Center for Part Time 19 

hours non benefited Chef Nutritionist.  She explained this person will do the shopping, 

prepping and cooking for the congregate lunches.  David Femia Chairman of the Council on 

Aging stated they have 5 seniors that regularly attend lunch and is hopeful that a Chef and 

lifted mandates will bring more attendance.  Ms. Clark Viklund stated the food currently 

comes from Elder Services of Worcester, they also supply Meals on Wheels.  She stated it is 

typical school type lunches and nothing fresh.  She is hopeful if they could become self-

sustaining with a food program the food would be fresher.  Mr. Rucho asked if there is cost 

for the current lunch program, Ms. Clark Viklund stated it is a state funded program.  She 

stated the proposed Chef would only be preparing the congregate lunches and food for special 

events only and Elder Services would provide Meals on Wheels.  Ms. Clark Viklund stated 

before COVID they had 8-10 seniors in for lunches.  Mr. Rucho asked if this person would 

also offer classes, Ms. Clark Viklund stated she is hopeful they would have classes.  Mr. 



M e e t i n g  M i n u t e s  o f  M a r c h  2 ,  2 0 2 2     P a g e  3 | 7 

 

Kittredge asked if the 19 hours weekly would be enough, Ms. Clark Viklund believed it 

would be as they are proposing Tuesday through Friday.  Mr. Femia stated most centers 

around West Boylston have a Chef currently and the lunches are packed.  Mr. Crowley asked 

if there is state funding for this position.  Mr. Kittredge asked if they plan to have a package 

price for people looking to use the center, Ms. Clark Viklund stated they can add to the policy 

for use. Ms. Lucier would like to have as an Article at Town Meeting fund the Chef for year 

one to see if it is sustainable and look at it again next year and if successful add to budget line 

next year.  She explained the Friends of the Council on Aging will fund the start up costs for 

food in hopes it will be sustaining and a revolving fund will be used.  Mr. Rajeshkumar asked 

how many Meals on Wheels are delivered, Ms. Clark Viklund stated there are currently 57 

users.  Mr. Pedone asked what the average cost per lunch would be, Ms. Clark Viklund 

estimated the cost to be $4-6 per meal which would go into the revolving fund.  Mr. Rucho 

asked if other centers cook the Meals on Wheels, Ms. Clark Viklund responded most do not.  

She explained you are not able to charge for the food it is donation only.           

                      

Motion Mr. Crowley moved to support adding an Article for Town Meeting Warrant of $18,000 

to fund the Part Time Chef and amend the revolving fund; Mr. Rajeshkumar second.  

Mr. Rucho would really like to see classes offered by the Chef.  Mr. Kittredge asked about the Salary 

would be enough to find a part time Chef, Ms. Clark Viklund believed it would be and seems to be 

the average.         

All in favor  

Approved  

Mr. Femia addressed the issue they have with snowmobiles on the property, Mr. Rucho asked them to address 

with the Town Administrator.  

Ms. Clark Viklund stated they had a very successful drive thru luncheon and the classes seem to be also 

picking up.  She is working on adding more activities.  Mr. Kittredge asked if the pool room is being used, Ms. 

Clark Viklund stated it is.   

Mr. Rucho asked about evening activities, Ms. Clark Viklund is hopeful as the weather gets better.   

Ms. Lucier asked if they have found someone to begin work on the Bocci court, Ms. Clark Viklund stated she 

is in contact with a contractor.  Mr. Rucho asked is the DPW could assist, Ms. Lucier will aske the Director if 

the DPW could help.          

6:30 p.m. PUBLIC HEARING (cont.): Consider Amending Policy A-#4 Policy on Meeting and 

Agenda Procedures:  

Ms. Lucier presented an updated draft with the edits as recommended.  Mr. Crowley stated this 

policy is now inline with how it is being prepared.  Mr. Rucho would like the times removed for 

scheduling on the agenda, Ms. Lucier stated times need to remain for Public Hearings.  Ms. Pedone 

reads the wording different, Mr. Crowley stated if they add “to appear on the agenda” it will clarify.  

Mr. Crowley requested amending “weekly agenda” to bi-weekly or agenda.     

Motion Mr. Crowley moved to close the public hearing; Mr. Rajeshkumar second.  

All in favor  

Approved  

Motion Mr. Crowley moved to approve changes to policy A-#4 as printed and adding verbal 

changes just made; Mr. Kittredge second.  

All in favor  

Approved  

 

NEW BUSINESS:  



M e e t i n g  M i n u t e s  o f  M a r c h  2 ,  2 0 2 2     P a g e  4 | 7 

 

• Consider Departmental Transfer for Veteran’s Services Officer in the amount of 

$1,000 from Veteran’s Benefits to Veterans Supplies:  

Ms. Lucier explained this is to purchase flags for Veteran’s Day and is a reimbursable 

expense from the state at 75%.   

Motion Mr. Crowley moved to approve; Mr. Rajeshkumar second.  

All in favor  

Approved  

• Consider approving a Finance Committee Reserve Fund Transfer in the amount 

of $10,000 to pay for the services of a consulting firm for the Town 

Administrator Search Process:  

Ms. Lucier stated the Board requested the transfer and there has not been any funds 

spent from the Reserve Fund to date.  She let the Chair of Finance Committee know 

this request would be coming.    

Motion Mr. Crowley moved to approve the transfer; Mr. Rajeshkumar second.  

Mr. Crowley stated they may receive push back from Finance Committee on this as this is an 

anticipated expense.  He stated they knew Nancy was retiring and is not unanticipated.  Mr. 

Rucho stated Nancy retiring was not anticipated but choosing to go with a consultant for the 

search was.  Ms. Lucier feels they have a strong argument for the need of the funds to be able 

to have a good search completed with many other towns also looking for a Town 

Administrator.      

All in favor  

Approved  

• Discuss Hybrid Meetings (Raj): 

Mr. Rajeshkumar stated a few town residents would like to have hybrid meetings in 

order to participate.  He stated the PEG Board has discussed and is looking into costs 

and logistics.  Mr. Rajeshkumar stated a policy will need to be created and also decide 

who is controlling the meetings.  He stated Representative James O’Day has filed a 

bill to continue allowing remote meetings.  Mr. Rucho stated the system is in place in 

the Selectboards meeting room but there are a lot of unknowns and will be a lot of 

work and costs associated.  MS. Lucier stated she was unable to find a Zoom policy in 

any other towns.  Mr. Rucho stated he spoke the Attorney Generals office and was 

told all attendees of the meeting in person needs to see the participants of Zoom and 

the system in the room is not set up for that.  Mr. Crowley stated until the states vote 

to extend the hybrid meetings on a regular basis, he does not want to spend any funds.  

Mr. Kittredge discussed having the availability for hybrid meeting for large attended 

meetings and also to allow for use of the Selectboard meeting room.  Ms. Lucier will 

get more information and provide an update at a future meeting.     

• Consider approving the hiring for the Assistant Town Treasurer position 

(finalizing interviews and reference checks):   

Ms. Lucier stated the position was posted on February 14th and received five letters of 

interest.  She stated they interviewed three of the applicants and chose Heather Ryan 

for the position.  She stated the position is 32.5 hours weekly, at Step 2 of Grade E 

$20.82 per hour.  She stated her first day will be March 1st with two weeks of cross 

training with current Assistant Town Treasurer Linda Ritter who will be retiring on 

April 1st.  



M e e t i n g  M i n u t e s  o f  M a r c h  2 ,  2 0 2 2     P a g e  5 | 7 

 

Motion Mr. Crowley moved to approve; Mr. Kittredge second.  

Mr. Rucho asked if there were any changes to the position, Ms. Lucier responded this position 

is now combined with the five hour a week clerk position in that department.   

All in favor  

Approved  

APPOINTMENT AND RESIGNATIONS:  

• Concurrence on the appointment of Elaine Novia to the Scholarship Committee 

effective March 7, 2022 for a term to expire on April 30, 2025.        

Motion Mr. Rajeshkumar moved to approve; Mr. Kittredge second.  

4-1-0  Ms. Pedone opposed 

Approved  

      

TOWN ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 

1. Wellness Grant 

 

Last year we changed our insurance carrier from Fallon to MIIA. Annually MIIA offers a 

Wellness Grant opportunity to MIIA Health Benefits Trust members.  The funds can be used 

for a number of items such as creating relaxation spaces, water coolers, community gardens, 

indoor/outdoor plants or adjustable desks or risers, personal training with a fitness trainer.   

 

The grant was due on February 1st and I was struggling to come up with a meaningful idea 

which would have a positive impact on staff.  That all changed after I attended a self-defense 

seminar offered on January 18th at our police department.   Chief Minnich had been in contact 

with Tonya Peters a 2nd degree black belt and owner of Force Fitness and defense in 

Holden.  She has offered to do a self-defense seminar for women only.  Before opening it up 

to anyone else, the Chief offered the slots to our employees.  

 

After participating in that class and watching the staff I work with it was energizing to see 

their sense of empowerment and self-confidence build. The class was filled with situational 

awareness self-defense techniques.  The next day some staff members commented on how 

much they enjoyed the class and their desire to sign up for more sessions.   I will be working 

with Tonya to schedule 6 classes, a combination of situational awareness and self-defense 

sessions.   We were also approved for funds to purchase two Wavemaster Combo training 

dummies.  A special thank you to Officer Dave Westerman who has been volunteering his 

time for these classes.  He did an amazing job. 

 

2. West Boylston Day at Polar Park 

 

You may recall that when I met with the representatives from the Woo Sox organization, they 

mentioned having a West Boylston Day at Polar Park.  Initially they offered Friday, June 3rd, 

which I let them know would not work as that is Graduation Night for the school. We were 

focusing on a Friday so we could enjoy the Friday Night Fireworks.  We were then offered 

Friday, May 20th, which ended up being a mishap on their website, which showed it open and 

it wasn’t.  The only date they have available is Tuesday, May 17th.  I let them know that May 

16th is our town meeting and May 18th is a Selectboard meeting so this is not an ideal date.   

 



M e e t i n g  M i n u t e s  o f  M a r c h  2 ,  2 0 2 2     P a g e  6 | 7 

 

What they do is select a non-profit in West Boylston to highlight for that evening. They have 

selected the West Boylston Food Pantry and for every ticket sold through a website they set up; 

the Food Pantry gets $5.00 from every ticket sold. They will reach out to West Boylston 

businesses to promote the event.  The tickets don’t have to be purchased from just from West 

Boylston residents and businesses.  The Food Pantry will benefit for all sales through the 

website.  Before agreeing to this date, I let them know that I would like to run it by the 

Selectboard.  Unfortunately, there aren’t any other options other than May 17th. 

Mr. Rucho stated they can reschedule a selectboard meeting if that is an issue.  Mr. Crowley stated this 

should not interfere with any meetings but will be a busy week.  Ms. Pedone asked if information will 

be sent out so people can purchase tickets.  Mr. Rucho asked if there is an extra fee with the ticket 

purchase, Ms. Lucier can find out.       

 

3. Salt Shed Damage 
 

Following the October 26, 2021 storm the DPW observed damage to the salt shed roof. 

Paperwork was filed with MIIA who sent out an adjuster who provided the following 

determination: “Based upon the extent of wind damage to both sides to the metal roofing 

panels, I will suggest removing and replacing the metal roofing and wood purlin system in its 

entirety.  The roof measures 62'x44' for a total square footage of metal roofing in the amount 

of 27.28 squares.”  

 

Lee Zdanys, who is a Senior Adjuster for MIIA and worked on our town hall sprinkler 

damage project, sent out a structural engineer as he was concerned with the condition of the 

trusses and he questioned whether they would need to bring a crane in.   Lee is still waiting 

for that report.  The restoration is being completed by Blusky Restoration Contractors under 

the direction of MIIA. In December the hole in the roof was restored with a temporary system 

so that the salt stockpile would not be impacted.   

Mr. Rucho asked if the building will now need to be brought up to code, Ms. Lucier responded that is 

correct and we have the coverage included in our insurance policy and will all be covered minus the 

deductible.     

 

4. WRTA Rider Community Rep 

 

It has been brought to my attention that the WRTA Advisory Board has a vacancy for their 

‘Ridership’ community position on the Advisory Board.  This position requirement is that the 

representative must be a fixed route rider, not a Council on Aging participant for service, and 

be a resident in the appointment community and that the community has fixed route bus service 

with the WRTA.  This is a volunteer one-year term position, is a voting member of the Board, 

and attendance to the monthly WRTA Board meetings which are the third Thursday of each 

month at 8:30 a.m. either in person at the WRTA Hub in Worcester or via zoom.   

 

All applicants must go through the town’s appointment protocol. As this is a new appointment 

opportunity we will post the information on the website in addition to a News Announcement, 

FB and The Item. 

 

MEETINGS, INVITATIONS & ANNOUNCEMENTS: 

• Tuesday, March 8th, 6:30 – Game Night for Teens at the Beaman Library – participants 

are encouraged to bring along a favorite game to share with a group  



M e e t i n g  M i n u t e s  o f  M a r c h  2 ,  2 0 2 2     P a g e  7 | 7 

 

 

• March 9, 7:15 – Invitation to attend School Committee Meeting during which Daniel 

Phillips from Collies Project Leaders will present an overview of the current facilities 

condition and projected priorities for Major Edwards and the Middle/High School 

 

• Wii Bowling on Friday mornings at 10:00 a.m. at the Senior Center  

 

• Starting in March every Tuesday morning from 10-11 – Free Hatha Yoga Class at the 

Senior Center 

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS/SELECTMANS REPORTS: 

• Ms. Pedone announced the Town Wide Clean-up will be April 30th from 9a.m. to 12 p.m. 

supplies can be picked up at the town hall and refreshments will be held from 11:30 a.m. 

to 1 p.m. Sign up on town website or email wbtownwidecleanup@gmail.com   

   

• Mr. Crowley announced Egg Hunt will be held on April 16th funded by the Celebrations 

Committee and more details to follow from the Recreation Director.        

Motion Ms. Pedone moved to adjourn at 7:09 p.m.; Mr. Crowley second.  

All in favor  

Approved    

 

Respectfully submitted,    Approved:  

 

________________________________  ___________________________________ 

Faye D. Zukowski, Municipal Assistant  Christopher A. Rucho, Chairman 

 

       ___________________________________ 

Barur R. Rajeshkumar, Vice Chairman  

             

       ___________________________________ 

       Patrick J. Crowley, Clerk 

 

       __________________________________ 

       Michael J. Kittredge III, Selectman 

 

       ___________________________________ 

       Kristina Pedone, Selectman 

  

mailto:wbtownwidecleanup@gmail.com

